
City Council Agenda:  April 23, 2019 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF  
THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE, MINNESOTA 

TUESDAY, APRIL 23, 2019 
7:00 P.M. IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL  

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting on April 9, 2019 
 

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

4. VISITORS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. Special Olympics recognition of the White Bear Lake Police Department 

 
B. Jason Brown – White Bear Boat Works 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
A. Annual public meeting and 2018 Annual Report on the City’s Storm Water Pollution Prevention 

Program 
 
6. LAND USE 
 

A. Consideration of a Planning Commission recommendation of approval of the DRAFT 2040 
Comprehensive Plan and authorize distribution to affected jurisdictions for review.  (Case No. 17-1-CP) 

 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 
Nothing scheduled 
 

8. ORDINANCES 
 

Nothing scheduled 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. Resolution extending the Cable Commission Franchise 
 
B. Resolution accepting bids and awarding contract for the 2019 Bituminous Seal Coating Project, City 

Project No. 19-02 
 

C. Resolution accepting bids and awarding contract for the 2019 crack sealing program, City Project No. 
18-03 

 



City Council Agenda:  April 23, 2019 
 
10. CONSENT 
 

A. Acceptance of Minutes of the White Bear Lake Conservation District; Environmental Advisory 
Committee 
 

B. Resolution authorizing wine, 3.2 and Sunday liquor licenses for Waters Senior Living Management 
 

C. Resolution authorizing extension of a rental agreement with Comcast 
 

D. Resolution denying massage business establishment license 
 
11. DISCUSSION 

 
A.  Bruce Vento Trail update 
 

12. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 



City Council Minutes:  April 9, 2019 
 

1 
 

 
MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF WHITE BEAR LAKE, MINNESOTA 

TUESDAY, APRIL 9, 2019 
7:00 P.M. IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

Mayor Emerson called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. Councilmembers Doug Biehn, Dan 
Jones, Steven Engstran and Bill Walsh were present.  Councilmember Kevin Edberg was 
excused absence.  Staff members present were City Manager Ellen Hiniker, Community 
Development Director Kane, Finance Director Kerri Kindsvater, City Engineer Paul Kauppi, 
City Clerk Kara Coustry and City Attorney Troy Gilchrist. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting on March 26, 2019 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Biehn seconded by Councilmember Jones, to approve 
the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting on March 26, 2019. 
 
Motion carried unanimously.  

 
3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

It was moved by Councilmember Engstran seconded by Councilmember Jones, to 
approve the agenda as presented. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
4. VISITORS AND PRESENTATIONS 

 
Nothing scheduled 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
A.  Resolution approving multifamily housing Revenue Note (Century Hills Project), Series 

2019 conduit debt 
 

Community Development Director Kane reported that Century Hills Partners is requesting 
final authorization to proceed with the issuance of $6 million in tax-exempt conduit 
revenue bonds. Century Hills will use proceeds to acquire, rehabilitate and equip an 
existing 55-unit affordable multi-family rental property located at 3525 Century Avenue. 
 
Ms. Kane reported that notice was published on March 20th and draft documents have 
been on file with the City Clerk for public review. The public hearing is intended to 
provide the opportunity for interested individuals to express their views on the Project and 



City Council Minutes:  April 9, 2019 
 

2 
 

the proposed issuance of bonds for the purpose of acquiring, rehabilitating and equipping 
of the existing multi-family property. 
 
Ms. Kane reiterated the note will not constitute a general or moral obligation of the City, 
will not be secured or payable from any property or assets of the City and will not be 
secured by any taxying power of the City. The City is merely serving as the conduit issuer 
for Century Hills to borrow funds at a low interest rate and to designate the note as a 
“qualified tax-exempt obligation.” 
 
Ms. Kane reported the owners intend to renew their Housing Assistance Payment contract 
with the Department of Housing and Urban Development when it expires in 2020, which 
will maintain affordability of 100% of the units at the property for an additional 20 years. 
Staff believes the rehabilitation of Century Hills will retain quality affordable housing in 
White Bear Lake, which is consistent with local and regional plans to preserve and expand 
affordable housing opportunities within the community. 
 
Ms. Kane forwarded staff’s recommendation that Council adopt the attached resolution 
authorizing the Mayor and City Manager to execute the revenue note for the benefit of 
Century Hills Partners. She pointed out that Gina Fiorini with Kennedy and Graven is also 
available to answer any questions of Bond Council.  
 
Mayor Emerson 7:05 p.m. opened the public. As no one came forward, Mayor Emerson 
closed the public hearing. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Biehn, to 
adopt Resolution No. 12375 approving multifamily housing Revenue Note (Century 
Hills Project), Series 2019 conduit debt. 
 

6. LAND USE 
 

A.  Consent 
 
 Nothing scheduled 
 
B.  Non-Consent 
 

1. Consideration of a Planning Commission recommendation of approval of a request 
by Honsa Family Funeral Home for an Amendment to an existing Conditional Use 
Permit to allow a building addition at 2460 County Road E (93-15-Sa) 
 
Ms. Kane stated the subject site is located on the south side of County Road E just 
west of Bellaire Avenue and is zoned B-2, Limited Business. The property is just over 
an acre in area and contains a 5,000 square foot funeral home with a 56-stall parking 
lot. The owner, Terry Honsa, would like to construct a 1,000 square foot addition on 
the east side of the building.  Consequently, she is requesting an amendment to the 
existing conditional use permit for 1,020 square foot building addition and to replace 
every other tree along the south side of the parking lot. 
 
Ms. Kane reported that the building addition would be used for office and casket 
display.  The former casket display area will be remodeled for use as a larger family 
lounge area, which provides families a place for privacy during a service. 
 



City Council Minutes:  April 9, 2019 
 

3 
 

The building addition is designed to match the existing building and it complies with 
all setback requirements. There is a new door on the south side of the addition, but it is 
for employees only.  The ground slopes towards the building on one side, so a 
drainage plan will be required to insure that run-off is addressed properly. 
 
Ms. Kane explained that the approved landscape plan requires 21 evergreens along the 
entire length of the south property line. The area was overplanted, and there are 24 
evergreens in this area.  To alleviate a neighbor’s concern, the Planning Commission 
recommended a condition that if any tree dies, it shall be replaced by a similar type 
evergreen at least 6 feet in height. 
 
Ms. Kane forwarded the Planning Commission recommendation for approval of the 
amendments to the Conditional Use Permit, subject to the conditions listed in the draft 
resolution. 
 
The applicant, Terry Honsa of 2522 Cedar Avenue, clarified the tree line runs east-
west along the southern border of their parking lot.  She stated the shade from these 
trees makes it difficult to clear snow. She also spoke with neighbors who would be 
impacted by smaller 3-foot trees rather than 6-foot trees and stated there were fine 
with a smaller tree size. 
 
Councilmember Biehn inquired as the 6-foot tree requirement versus the applicant’s 
request to plant 3-foot trees.  Ms. Kane stated that for commercial properties, the code 
for evergreens requires six feet in height. 
 
Councilmember Jones further questioned the 6-foot tree requirement. City Attorney 
Gilchrist explained that the tree size is a matter of policy. He pointed out that the only 
way an applicant could deviate from that City Code requirement would be through the 
variance process. Mr. Gilchrist mentioned the City Council could look at amending its 
code in the future. 
 
Councilmember Walsh mentioned that he assumes the 6-foot requirement stems from 
survivability.  Ms. Kane added it is also for screening and mentioned that a 6-foot 
requirement is an industry standard. He stated he is satisfied with the Planning 
Commission recommendation. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Walsh, seconded by Councilmember Biehn, to 
adopt Resolution No. 12376 approving a request by Honsa Family Funeral Home 
for an Amendment to an existing Conditional Use Permit to allow a building 
addition at 2460 County Road E. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

Nothing scheduled 
 
8. ORDINANCES 
 

Nothing scheduled 

9. NEW BUSINESS 



City Council Minutes:  April 9, 2019 
 

4 
 

 
A. Resolution approving adoption of the Ramsey County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 

 
City Manager Hiniker stated that Bryan Mayer with Ramsey County Emergency 
Management was present to answer any questions about the report.  She reported that 
Captain Hager has been involved with the construction of the White Bear Lake portion of 
the Ramsey County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan for a few years. Ms. Hiniker stated that 
Ramsey County’s plan has been approved by the Federal Government and it is now 
incumbent upon the City to adopt the plan so it can implemented. 
 
Ms. Hiniker explained that the plan defines different processes the City could implement 
and improve upon in order to minimize the effects of bad weather. Bryan Mayer added 
that items called out in the plan are provided to ensure they would be covered under 
different funding streams that may become available in an emergency.   
 
It was moved by Councilmember Biehn, seconded by Councilmember  
Jones, to adopt Resolution No. 12377 approving adoption of the Ramsey County 
Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

 
B. Resolution accepting bids and awarding contract for the 2019 Street Reconstruction 

Project, City Project No. 19-01 & 19-06 
 

City Engineer Kauppi reported that the Engineering Department received four (4) bids 
for the 2019 Street Reconstruction Project on April 3, 2019 with Forest Lake 
Contracting, Inc. submitting the lowest base bid of $2,150,327.05.  The low bid was 
17% under the Engineer’s estimate without the contingency.  Mr. Kauppi stated that 
Forest Lake did an excellent job last year and are qualified to complete the work 
proposed. 
 
Mr. Kauppi forwarded a recommendation that Council receive the bids and award a 
contract to Forest Lake Contracting, Inc. for the total base bid amount of $2,150,327.05 
plus Bid Alternates A1, A2, A3, A4 and A5 in the amount of $121,930 for residential 
driveways and Bid Alternate 2 in the amount of $9,000 for early completion in 
September, for a total contract of $2,281,257.05.   
 
It was moved by Councilmember Biehn, seconded by Councilmember Engstran, to 
adopt Resolution No. 12378 accepting bids and awarding contract for the 2019 Street 
Reconstruction Project, City Project No. 19-01 & 19-06. 

 
C. Resolution accepting bids and awarding contract for the 2019 Mill and Overlay Project, 

City Project No. 19-04 & 19-13 
 

City Engineer Kauppi reported that seven (7) bids were received for the 2019 Mill and 
Overlay Project with T.A. Schifsky & Sons, Inc. of North St. Paul, Minnesota 
submitting the lowest base bid of $713,619.85.  The low bid was 13% under our 
Engineer’s estimate without the contingency.  T.A. Schifsky & Sons, Inc. is qualified to 
complete this work. 
 
Mr. Kauppi forwarded a recommendation that the City Council accept the bid and award 
the 2019 Mill and Overlay Project to T.A. Schifsky & Sons, Inc 
 



City Council Minutes:  April 9, 2019 
 

5 
 

It was moved by Councilmember Engstran, seconded by Councilmember Jones, to 
adopt Resolution No. 12379 accepting bids and awarding contract for the 2019 Mill and 
Overlay Project, City Project No. 19-04 & 19-13. 

 
D.  Resolution ordering project, approving plans and authorizing advertisement for bids for 

the 2019 Sanitary Sewer Lining Program, City Project No. 19-07 
 

City Engineer Kauppi reported since 1994 a total of 13 miles of sewer lining has been 
installed.  There is a total of 120 miles of sanitary sewer lines in the system, with 20 miles 
comprised of more modern materials (PVC pipe).  The remaining 100 miles of sanitary 
sewer pipe is clay tile of which approximately 70% has been televised. 
 
Mr. Kauppi reported that each year the City focuses on mitigation in areas with reported 
cracks, offset joints and root intrusion. Each year because of ongoing maintenance efforts, 
the City experiences fewer sanitary sewer back-ups, with a little as a couple per year. Mr. 
Kauppi stated that $125,000 was allocated in the budget for this maintenance project. He 
stated the City would like to line more sewers this year and asked Council to adopt the 
resolution authorizing advertisement for bids for the 2019 Sanitary Sewer Lining 
Program. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Engstran, seconded by Councilmember Jones, to 
adopt Resolution No. 12380 ordering project, approving plans and authorizing 
advertisement for bids for the 2019 Sanitary Sewer Lining Program, City Project No. 
19-07. 

 
10. CONSENT 

 
A. Acceptance of White Bear Lake Conservation District Minutes, February Park 

Commission Minutes, February Environmental Advisory Commission Minutes March 
Planning Commission Minutes 

 
B. Resolution Accepting a Donation of $2,453.38 from the White Bear Lake Fire Relief 

Association for the purchase of a set of struts. Resolution No. 12381 
 

C. Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute the Washington County Recycling 
Grant Agreement. Resolution No. 12382 

 
D. Resolution approving a temporary liquor license for the Church of St. Pius X. 

Resolution No. 12383 
 

It was moved by Councilmember Biehn, seconded by Councilmember Jones, to adopt the 
consent agenda as presented. 
 
Motion carried unanimously.  

 
11.  DISCUSSION 

 
A. Summary presentation of Land Use section of the Comprehensive Plan 

 
Community Development Director Kane explained that the Metropolitan Council 
requires municipalities to update its Comprehensive Plan every ten years. Land Use is 
just one of six required sections of the plan. Ms. Kane reported the City is expected to 



City Council Minutes:  April 9, 2019 
 

6 
 

add over 1,500 residents, 500 jobs and an additional 1,200 households between 2020 
and 2040. To accommodate this anticipated growth in a fully built environment, there 
are limited opportunities for future development. Ms. Kane identified the following 
parcels in the Comprehensive Plan for their potential to support redevelopment to 
accommodate future anticipated growth. 
 

Property Current Land Use Future Land Use 
Kyle Property Park, Rec & Open Space Medium Density Residential 
Book Farm Parcel Medium Density Residential Same Use:   Future Opportunity Site 
Long Avenue Commercial Arts & Cultural Mixed Use 
Former Public Works Site Public/Semi-Public Transit Oriented Development 
Marina Triangle Phase II Lake Village Mixed Use Same Use:  Future Opportunity Site 
Auto Dealers Commercial Transit Oriented Development 
Auto Dealers II Commercial Transit Oriented Development 
New Public Works Site Commercial Public/Semi-Public & Industrial 
E County Rd E & Linden Ave Commercial Transit Oriented Development 
Wildwood Mall Commercial Neighborhood Mixed Use 
County Rd E & Bellaire Ave. Commercial Neighborhood Mixed Use 
Rolling View Drive Commercial Public/Semi-Public & Low Density Res. 
Rooney’s Farm Low Density Residential Same Use:  Future Opportunity Site 
Former Bellaire Clinic Medium Density Residential Same Use:  Future Opportunity Site 
Karth Road Properties High Density Residential Same Use:  Future Opportunity Site 
Various Downtown Sites  Potential Future Opportunities 
 
Ms. Kane reported that the Planning Commission approved the Draft 2040 
Comprehensive Plan Update after holding two public hearings.  The draft plan will be 
brought forward for Council consideration on April 23, 2019. 

 
12. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 

 
 Jason Brown has been working to chop up the ice near the docks in an effort to head 

off anticipated high winds that threaten to push ice into the docks.  Lights may be 
shining on the lake in the middle of the night. 
 

 Staff continues to work on action plans to support the strategic plan and will bring it 
back to the Council in May. 

 
 Laptops will be made available to Council for use in the Council Chambers through 

funding from Ramsey Washington Suburban Cable Commission. 
 

 Mayor Emerson reported hearing a report from the Commissioner of Labor at Specialty 
Manufacturing in the Township in which he highlighted Serenity and Century College 
for nursing and food service training.  The School District highlighted a summer 
program offered to students in which they pick four out of eight manufacturing plants 
to visit and learn about. 

 
 City Engineer Kauppi asked people not to park on the streets for the street sweeping 

activities today and snow removal anticipated on Thursday. He reported that sidewalks 
will not be plowed during this snow event due to soft ground that would be destroyed 
in the process and anticipated fast melting. 

 
 Councilmember Walsh provided an invitation to the annual Northeast Youth and 

Family Services Leadership Lunch on May 1, 2019. He said they always have a great 
speaker and encouraged people to register and join the who’s who in Ramsey County. 
 



City Council Minutes:  April 9, 2019 
 

7 
 

13. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business before the Council, it was moved by Councilmember 
Jones seconded by Councilmember Biehn to adjourn the regular meeting at 8:01 p.m. 

 
 
 
  
 
ATTEST: 

  Jo Emerson, Mayor

 
 
  
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 



5.A 
 

City of White Bear Lake 
Engineering Department 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Ellen Hiniker, City Manager 
 
From:  Connie Taillon, P.E., Environmental Specialist  
 
Date:  April 16, 2019 
 
Subject: Annual Public Meeting on the City’s Storm Water Pollution Prevention 

Program (SWPPP) 
 
 
BACKGROUND  
An MS4 (Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System) is a system of conveyances (pipes, catch 
basins, curb/gutter, ditches, etc.) owned or operated by a public body that discharges to public 
waters.  All agencies/entities which have an MS4 must comply with certain regulations established 
by the MPCA called an MS4 General Permit.  The City of White Bear Lake has created a SWPPP 
(Storm Water Pollution Prevention Program) to comply with the requirements of this permit.   
 
The purpose of the MS4 General Permit and the City’s SWPPP is to promote, preserve and enhance 
the natural resources within the City and to protect them from activities that would have an adverse 
and potentially irreversible impact on water quality.  The SWPPP describes how the City will 
protect and improve water quality through implementation of a variety of practices that are 
required by the MS4 General Permit. 
 
SUMMARY 
The City of White Bear Lake’s Storm Water Pollution Prevention Program (SWPPP) was prepared 
to meet the requirements of the Federal National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) Phase II Storm Water regulations issued by the United States Environmental Pollution 
Agency (USEPA).  The Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) administers this program 
through its General Storm Water Permit for Small Municipal Storm Sewer Systems (MS4s).  The 
goal of the City of White Bear Lake’s SWPPP is to improve the quality of the storm water runoff 
discharged from the City’s storm sewer system.  The SWPPP describes how the City proposes to 
accomplish improved storm water quality through implementation of six Minimum Control 
Measures (MCMs) that are required by the MPCA. 
 
The six MCMs included in the City’s program are: 

1. Public education and outreach 
2. Public participation and involvement 
3. Illicit discharge detection and elimination 
4. Construction site storm water runoff control 
5. Post construction stormwater management in new development and redevelopment 
6. Pollution prevention/good housekeeping for municipal operations 



5.A 
 

The City is implementing Best Management Practices (BMP) to support each of the MCMs and 
will annually review the plan and the BMPs employed to ensure compliance with the MPCA 
requirements. 
 
Public Meeting 
The City Council has ordered a public meeting to be held on April 23, 2019 to present an overview 
of the City’s SWPPP activities that were accomplished in 2018 which support the six MCMs listed 
above. The meeting will include opportunity for public comment on the appropriateness of the 
program. Written and oral comments received before or during the meeting will be considered as 
the Engineering Department prepares its Annual Report to the MPCA on its SWPPP. An annual 
public meeting is no longer a specific requirement of the MS4 Permit; however, we feel it is still 
a valuable forum for staff to educate the City Council and the public about our SWPPP and to 
allow feedback on it.   
 
Conclusion 
The City continues to encourage the public to share opinions on the City’s program to manage 
stormwater.  At the same time, the City encourages residents to educate themselves on simple 
changes they can make to reduce stormwater pollution and improve the quality of their local water 
bodies.  A wealth of information is available through the City, local watershed districts, 
conservation districts, and many other agencies. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
The Engineering Department will briefly review the evolution of MS4 regulations and provide an 
overview of the City’s 2018 activities for each of the six (6) required MCMs outlined above. Staff 
recommends that the City Council conduct a public hearing at the April 23, 2019 Council meeting 
to receive public comments on the City’s program. 



6.A 
 

 

City of White Bear Lake 
Community Development Department 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Ellen Richter, City Manager 
 
From:  The Planning Commission 
 
Through: Anne Kane, Community Development Director 
 
Date:  April 18th for the April 23, 2019 City Council Meeting 
 
Subject: Draft 2040 Comprehensive Plan – Case No. 17-1-CP 
 Distribution for Formal Review 
 
 
REQUEST  
Acceptance of the draft 2040 Comprehensive Plan and authorize its distribution to affected jurisdictions 
for review.  The entire draft plan may be found at www.whitebearlake.org under News and Events. 

SUMMARY 
State Statute requires all cities, townships and counties in the seven-county metropolitan area update 
their Comprehensive Plans at least every ten years.  Local Plans must align with the Metropolitan 
Council’s regional system plans related to highways, transit, airports, wastewater services, parks and 
open space.  The Metropolitan Council approved the City’s request for an extension and an updated plan 
must be submitted for Metropolitan Council review by December 31, 2019.  
 
The City initiated the comprehensive planning process in early 2017 with a concerted effort to solicit 
input from community stakeholders through a variety of venues. City planning and engineering staff 
held four open houses, business outreach meetings, prepared an online survey, and conducted pop-up 
meetings at Marketfest, YMCA, library, and area businesses to connect with residents as they went about 
their daily activities.   
 
In late 2017 and early 2018, planning and engineering staff presented detailed outlines and overviews of 
the various plan elements to the Planning Commission, Parks Advisory Commission, Environmental 
Advisory Commission and the WBL Economic Development Corporation for feedback and guidance 
from the advisory boards and commissions.  Last Fall, the City Council authorized a contract with 
Hoisington Koegler Group Inc. to provide consulting services to pull together the required elements of 
the draft plan:  
 

• Land Use   
• Economic Competitiveness 
• Housing  
• Transportation 

• Parks & Recreation 
• Natural Resources & Sustainability 
• Public Facilities 
• Implementation 

http://www.whitebearlake.org/


6.A 

At the February 25th Planning Commission meeting, the Public Hearing on the Draft 2040 
Comprehensive Plan was opened and staff provided an overview of the planning document, with 
particular focus on the Land Use chapter and discussion of properties which have been guided for 
redevelopment over the next two decades.  The Public Hearing was continued to the March 
Planning Commission meeting to allow additional time for residents, property owners and 
interested parties to review and comment on the draft document. 

As the City Council may recall, White Bear Lake is projected to add 1,500 residents, 500 jobs, and 
1,200 additional households between 2020 and 2040.  As a nearly fully built-out community, to 
accommodate our share of the anticipated regional growth, there are limited opportunities for 
development and the Comprehensive Plan is the community’s opportunity to identify where such 
growth is appropriate and desirable.   

Copies of the draft 2040 Comprehensive Plan were distributed to the City Council in February.  
Hard copies of the draft plan have been available for public review at City Hall and the draft plan 
has been posted on the City’s website for the past two months.  The White Bear Press has also 
provided considerable coverage of the long-range planning document and there was considerable 
public participation in the Public Hearing.   

On a 7-0 vote, the Planning Commission recommended adoption of the DRAFT 2040 
Comprehensive Plan.  Upon adoption of the draft Plan by the City Council, the process requires 
that affected jurisdictions be provided up to six months to review and comment before submission 
of the planning document to the Metropolitan Council.  Presuming the draft plan is distributed for 
review by the end of June, Staff does not anticipate any issues meeting the extended submittal 
deadline of December 31, 2019.   

Staff plans to provide an overview of the Housing element at the April 23rd City Council meeting 
similar to the Future Land Use overview that was provided at the last Council meeting.    

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
Accept the Planning Commission’s recommendation for approval and authorize staff to distribute 
the draft 2040 Comprehensive Plan Update to affected jurisdictions for review.   

(Actual adoption of the Comprehensive Plan Update will require a 4/5 majority vote by the City 
Council. It is anticipated this action will be considered by the City Council after the formal review 
period has ended and the Plan has been submitted to the Metropolitan Council for review and 
accepted, which is anticipated to occur in late 2019/early 2020.) 

ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution of Approval 
Excerpt of February 25th Planning Commission meeting minutes 
Excerpt of March 25th Planning Commission meeting minutes 



RESOLUTION NO. 

 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING  

THE DRAFT 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  
AND AUTHORIZING ITS DISTRIBUTION TO  
AFFECTED JURISDICTIONS FOR REVIEW 

 
 

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes, section 473.864, requires local governmental units to 
review and, if necessary, amend their entire comprehensive plan and their fiscal devices and official 
control at least once every ten years to ensure comprehensive plans confirm with metropolitan system 
plans and ensure fiscal devices and official controls do not conflict with comprehensive plans or 
permit activities that conflict with metropolitan system plans; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council, Planning Commission, staff and planning consultants have 

prepared a draft Comprehensive Plan intended to meet the requirements of the Metropolitan Planning 
Act and Metropolitan Council guidelines and procedures; and,  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes section 473.585. the draft Comprehensive Plan 

is required to be submitted to adjacent governmental units and affected special districts and school 
districts for review and comments for a statutory six-month review and comment period; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a Public Hearing on February 25, 2019 

and continued the Public Hearing to March 25, 2019 relative to the approval of the draft 
Comprehensive Plan; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has considered the draft Comprehensive Plan and all 

public comments, and thereafter submitted its recommendation to the City Council and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds it is appropriate to accept the recommendation of the 

Planning Commission regarding the draft Comprehensive Plan; and,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of White Bear 

Lake, Minnesota that the Community Development Director is authorized to submit the draft 2040 
Comprehensive Plan to affected jurisdictions for review and comment: 

 
Jurisdiction Type Jurisdiction Name 
Adjacent Community Birchwood Village 
Adjacent Community Gem Lake 
Adjacent Community Mahtomedi 
Adjacent Community Maplewood 
Adjacent Community North St. Paul; Source Water related 
Adjacent Community Oakdale 
Adjacent Community Vadnais Heights 
Adjacent Community White Bear Twp. 



RESOLUTION NO. 

Adjacent Community Ramsey County 
Adjacent Community Washington County 
Regional Park Implementing 
Agency Ramsey County 
Regional Park Implementing 
Agency Washington County 
School District 622; North St. Paul-Maplewood 
School District 624; White Bear Lake 
School District 832; Mahtomedi 
State Agency MnDOT 
State Agency MnDNR 
Watershed Management 
Organization Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed District 
Watershed Management 
Organization Rice Creek Watershed District 
Watershed Management 
Organization 

Vadnais Lake Area Watershed Management 
Organization 

Watershed Management 
Organization Valley Branch Watershed District 

  
 
The foregoing resolution offered by Councilmember _______________ and supported by 
Councilmember __________________, was declared carried on the following vote: 
 
 Ayes: 
   Nays:   
    Passed:   
 
 
       ________________________  
       Jo Emerson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
     
     
_________________________ 
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 
 



















9.A 

City of White Bear Lake 
City Manager’s Office 

M E M O R A N D U M

To: Mayor and City Council  

From: Ellen Hiniker, City Manager  

Date: April 16, 2019 

Subject: Cable Commission extension of Franchise Agreement with Comcast 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY  
The City’s Cable Commission has been negotiating terms for franchise renewal with Comcast 
since September 2017. At Comcast’s request, the Cable Commission agreed once again to extend 
the expiration date of the current Franchise Agreement.  To date, the following extensions have 
been approved by the City Council: 

City Council Approval Date Deadline Extension 
January 23, 2018 November 1, 2018 
June 12, 2018 March 31, 2019 
November 27, 2018 August 31, 2019 

The Cable Commission is again recommending that the City Council approve another extension 
agreement with Comcast. This would push the expiration date of the current Franchise from 
August 31, 2019 to February 28, 2020, which would allow additional time for informal 
negotiations between Comcast and the Cable Commission. 

The Executive Director of Ramsey Washington Suburban Cable Commission, Tim Finnerty will 
be present to answer any questions Council may have related to the extension or the Cable 
Commission. 

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
Staff recommends the City Council approve the extension to allow more time for informal 
franchise renewal negotiations with Comcast. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution 
Timeline for Franchise Renewal 



  
 
 

 
  

RESOLUTION NO.    
 

AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT TO EXTEND THE CABLE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT WITH COMCAST 

 
 
WHEREAS, The City of White Bear Lake, through its Cable Commission, periodically 

negotiate the terms of its cable franchise with Comcast; and 
 
WHEREAS, The current cable franchise agreement with Comcast is set to expire on 

August 31, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, Comcast has asked for an extension of the current franchise agreement of 

February 28, 2020, to allow additional time for informal negotiations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Cable Commission has agreed this extension is reasonable, and has a 

back-up plan for a formal hearing process in case informal negotiations are unsuccessful.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of White Bear 

Lake that the Mayor is authorized and hereby directed to execute an extension to the Ramsey 
Washington Suburban Cable Commission Franchise Agreement with Comcast, which pushes the 
expiration date from August 31, 2019 to February 28, 2020. 
 
 

The foregoing resolution offered by Councilmember ________, and supported by 
Councilmember __________ was declared carried on the following vote. 
 
 Ayes:   
 Nays:   
 Passed:  

 
 
 

                                                                         
      Jo Emerson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Kara Coustry, City Clerk  







9.B 

City of White Bear Lake 
City Engineer’s Office 

M E M O R A N D U M

To: Ellen Hiniker, City Manager 

From: Paul Kauppi, Public Works Director/City Engineer 

Date: April 17, 2019 

Subject: Awarding Contract for 2019 Bituminous Seal Coating Project 
City Project 19-02 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY  
On Wednesday, April 17, 2019, the City received bids for the 2019 Bituminous Seal Coating 
Project.  Three bids were submitted, with Allied Blacktop Company of Maple Grove, MN 
submitting the lowest base bid of $98,883.73.  This contract amount is well within the 2019 Seal 
Coating budget of $190,000.00. 

The City performs seal coating of bituminous streets to prevent water from entering the pavement 
and gravel base, to renew the wearing surface of the roadway and to improve the appearance of 
the street. 

In 2019, we are proposing to perform seal coating of City streets in various locations throughout 
the city.  Some of these streets were last seal coated in 2012.  Other streets are those which were 
reconstructed or milled & overlaid in 2013 and are now showing signs of wear.  It is important to 
seal the surface of these streets before they degrade to a point where more extensive maintenance 
needs to be performed. 

All proposed streets will be seal coated using a trap rock as the cover aggregate.  The trap rock is 
a hard, crushed rock which will provide a durable surface with a nice appearance. 

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
Our recommendation is that the Council receive the bids and award a contract to Allied Blacktop 
Company for $98,883.73 for the 2019 Bituminous Seal Coating Project. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution 



 
RESOLUTION NO.: 

 
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING BIDS AND AWARDING CONTRACT 

FOR THE 2019 BITUMINOUS SEAL COATING PROJECT 
CITY PROJECT NO. 19-02 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to resolutions of the City Council, specifications where drawn and 

advertisement for bids were made; and  
   
     WHEREAS, the following bids complying with the advertisement and specifications were 
received, opened, and tabulated according to law:  
                                                   
  

CONSTRACTOR TOTAL BASE BID 
Allied Blacktop Company $98,883.73 
ASTECH Corp. $109,374.81 
Pearson Bros., Inc. $107,431.97 

 
WHEREAS, it appears that Pearson Bros., Inc. is the lowest responsible bidder: 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of White Bear 

Lake, Minnesota that:  
   
      1. The Mayor and Manager are hereby authorized and directed to enter into a 

contract with Allied Blacktop Company in the amount of $98,883.73 for said 2019 
Bituminous Seal Coating Project. 

   
      2.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to return forthwith to all 

bidders the deposits made with their bids, except that the deposits of the successful 
bidder and the next lowest bidder shall be retained until a contract has been signed.  

   
       The foregoing resolution offered by Councilmember________, and supported by 
Councilmember _________, was declared carried on the following vote: 
 

Ayes:   
Nays:  
Passed:  

 
      _______     
      Jo Emerson, Mayor   
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________ 
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 
 



9.C 

City of White Bear Lake 
City Engineer’s Office 

M E M O R A N D U M
To: Ellen Hiniker, City Manager 

From: Paul Kauppi, Public Works Director/City Engineer 

Date: April 17, 2019 

Subject: Awarding Contract for the 2019 Crack Sealing Project 
City Project 19-03 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY  
Bids were received on April 17, 2019 for the 2019 Crack Sealing Project. The crack sealing 
contract includes cleaning of cracks in bituminous street pavements with a router and then filling 
the cracks with a hot, liquid, rubberized sealant. The crack sealing process prevents water from 
penetrating through the street pavement and entering the gravel base where it weakens the street 
and causes failures. The crack sealing process is accomplished ahead of the sealcoating operation 
so that the smaller cracks not sealed by the crack sealing contractor are sealed by the seal coat 
emulsion. 

Five bids were received with MP Asphalt Maintenance LLC of Clear Lake, MN submitting the 
lowest bid of $35,400.  This contract amount is well within the 2019 Crack Sealing budget of 
$150,000. 

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
Our recommendation is that the City Council receive the bids and award a contract to MP Asphalt 
Maintenance LLC for $35,400.00 for the 2019 Crack Sealing Project. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution 



 RESOLUTION NO.  
 
 RESOLUTION ACCEPTING BIDS AND AWARDING CONTRACT  
 FOR THE 2019 CRACK SEALING PROGRAM 

CITY PROJECT NO. 19-03 
 

WHEREAS, the Engineering Department prepared specifications for construction of the 2019 
Crack Sealing Project; and  
   
     WHEREAS, the following bids complying with the request for proposals and specifications were 
received, opened, and tabulated according to law:  
 

CONTRACTOR TOTAL BASE BID 
Allied Blacktop Company        $63,900.00 
Fahrner Asphalt Sealers LLC  $69,000.00 
ASTECH Corp. $47,400.00 
SealTech, Inc.  $48,000.00 
MP Asphalt Maintenance LLC $35,400.00 

                           
WHEREAS, it appears that MP Asphalt Maintenance LLC is the lowest responsible bidder. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of White Bear Lake, 

Minnesota that:  
   
      1. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to enter into 

contract with MP Asphalt Maintenance LLC in the amount of $35,400.00 as approved 
by the City Council and on file in the office of the City Engineer. 

   
      2.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to return forthwith to all bidders 

the deposits made with their bids, except that the deposits of the successful bidder and 
the next lowest bidder shall be retained until a contract has been signed.  

   
       The foregoing resolution offered by Council Member _________ and supported by Council  
 
Member______________ was declared carried on the following vote: 
 

Ayes:   
Nays:   
Passed:  

             
       Jo Emerson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE WHITE BEAR LAKE CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
7:00 pm White Bear Lake City Hall 

Minutes of February 19, 2019 
APPROVAL DATE: March 16, 2019 with corrections 

1. CALL TO ORDER the February 19, 2019 meeting of the White Bear Lake Conservation District
was called to order by Chair Bryan DeSmet at 7:00 pm in the White Bear Lake City Hall Council
Chambers.

2. ROLL CALL Present were: Chair Bryan DeSmet, Vice Chair Mark Ganz, Directors: Scott Costello,
Mike Parenteau, Marty Rathmanner, Cameron Sigecan absent were Directors Geoff Ratte and
Susie Mahoney A quorum was present.

3. AGENDA - Chair DeSmet asked for any changes to agenda Motion/Second move 1st item from
Executive Committee to New Business.  Add under LUC Applications from City of White Bear 3
applications, Hickory Street, Fletcher Driscoll, & McCartney Estates.  Add under Lake Education
anti-plastic campaign.

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF – November 2018 board meeting Motion (DeSmet/Second) Moved
to approve  all aye passed. Minutes from Special meeting in January will be included with the
March board meeting packet.

5. PUBLIC COMMENT TIME – None
6. NEW BUSINESS – Introduction and welcome to new board member Cameron Sigecan from

Birchwood.
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None
8. REPORTS/ACTION ITEMS

Executive Committee – The executive committee met with commercial bay owners.  Brian
McGoldrick and City of White Bear attended.  Discussed consideration of increase in fees,
penalties, and possible ordinance changes.  Discussed changes to application to include that
each place of business also attach a copy of their DNR Water Use Permit as this will indicate the
maximum number of boats they are allowed to have and if they request more boats they will
have to go back to the DNR to request the increase.  Discussed that dock layouts are going back
to how they were prior to low lake level adjustments.
Action item – Nominations are open for Chair, Vice Chair & Secretary/Treasurer
Mike Parenteau nominates Bryan DeSmet for Chair, Mark Ganz for Vice Chair and Diane
Longville for Sec/Treas.  Any nominations can be reported to Kim or Alan, final vote at the March
meeting.

9. Lake Quality Committee – Mike Parenteau
• Ice Over Date – totally frozen was November 28, 2018
• Request for bids have been sent out for treatment and survey in addition this year we

requested a bid to include treatment and or survey of pharagmities which is done in the
fall and the treatment and or survey of starry stonewort

10. Lake Utilization Committee – Mark Ganz
A letter was sent out to all commercial bay owners informing them of the new requirement of
the DNR Water Use Permit to be included with their application.  Kim will make the necessary
changes to the application.

10.A



• White Bear Lake – Manitou no changes from last year 1 abstain Bryan DeSmet 6 
remaining aye passed 

• White Bear Lake – Municipal Marina all aye passed 
• White Bear Lake – Vet Park No changes only pay application fee just a fishing dock no 

boats. All aye passed 
• Fletcher Driscoll all aye passed 
• Hickory St. tabled missing diagram 
• McCartney Estates – Changed bought new dock approved neighbors were not notified 

so waiting to see if anyone has any issues or questions, if not then will approve. 
11. Lake Education – Scott Costello 

  The lake clean-up project is March 9th 10 am Bellaire beach, VFW will serve lunch to volunteers. 
 Anti-plastics campaign would like feedback from board on taking this on as our yearly project      
 To have signs made up showing how bad plastic is for our lake then ask marinas, boat launch  
  Areas, and dock owners, businesses around lake to post signs.  All agreed a great project to  
  Proceed. 

12. Treasurer’s Report – Motion (DeSmet/Second) approval of February 2019 Treasurer’s report 
and payment of check numbers 4548-4554 All Aye passed.   

13. Board Counsel 
Nothing new to report 

14. Consent Agenda – Motion (DeSmet/Second) Move to accept the consent agenda. All Aye 
Passed. 

15. Announcements – None 
16. Adjournment – Motion (DeSmet/Second) Move to adjourn. All aye Passed. 

Meeting adjourned 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
Kim Johnson___________________________________          Date:______________ 
Executive Administrative Secretary 
 
 
 
 
Bryan DeSmet_________________________________          Date:_______________ 
Board Chair 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE WHITE BEAR LAKE CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
7:00 pm White Bear Lake City Hall 

Minutes of March 19, 2019 
 

APPROVAL DATE: April 16, 2019 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER the March 19, 2019 meeting of the White Bear Lake Conservation District was 
called to order by Chair Bryan DeSmet at 7:00 pm in the White Bear Lake City Hall Council 
Chambers. 

2. ROLL CALL Present were: Chair Bryan DeSmet, Vice Chair Mark Ganz, Directors: Scott Costello, 
Mike Parenteau, Susie Mahoney, Cameron Sigecan absent was Sec/Tres Diane Longville 
Directors Geoff Ratte and Marty Rathmanner. A quorum was present. 

3. AGENDA - Chair DeSmet asked for any changes to the agenda. Motion/second to add under LUC  
Change City of Mahtomedi to East Shore Dock Assoc and McCartney Estates carryover from last 
month 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF – February 2019 board meeting with corrections  Motion 
(DeSmet/Second) Moved to approve  all aye passed.  

5. PUBLIC COMMENT TIME – None 
6. NEW BUSINESS – received thank you note from H20 and post card from a Cody Olson asking 

that in future decisions we take into account the inclusion of those with disabilities. 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
8. REPORTS/ACTION ITEMS 

Executive Committee – None 
Action item – Nominations are open for Chair, Vice Chair & Secretary/Treasurer  
Mike Parenteau nominated Bryan DeSmet for Chair, Mark Ganz for Vice Chair and Diane 
Longville for Sec/Treas.  No additional nominations were received, Chair Bryan DeSmet opened 
the floor three additional times for any further nominations none received. Nomination process 
closed.  Motion/second to accept the nominations and that Bryan DeSmet will continue to serve 
as Chair, Mark Ganz as Vice Chair, and Diane Longville as  Secretary/Treasurer all aye vote 
passed. 

9. Lake Quality Committee – Mike Parenteau  
• Received bid from Blue Science Water for survey cost of $3,100 plus $200 additional for 

surveying the potential of milfoil and starry stonewart at boat launches. Will do same as 
last year early in the year around June and going deeper we got good results last year 
with this approach.  Motion/second to approve $3,100 from the budget and $200 from 
general fund.  All aye passed. 

• Received applicators bid Lake Management. Asking the board to review as Mike would 
like to have further discussions with Steve McComas and do some product research as a 
few products have changed this year being offered. Will vote next month. 

10. Lake Utilization Committee – Mark Ganz review of multi Dock applications 
• White Bear Yacht Racing – same as prior years asked that they coordinate racing 

schedules with Black Bear Racing done. Approved 
• Black Bear Racing – Approved 
• White Bear Yacht Club – Approved 



• ESDA –  same as prior years vote Ganz abstained 5 vote aye passed 
• McCartney Estates – carryover from last month bought new dock needed neighbors 

notified letter sent two week notice given – Approved  
11. Lake Education – Scott Costello 

March 9th was lake clean up day had record number of volunteers. Found some unusual items. 
Thank you to the Boy Scouts and the VFW for lunch. Pictures are on the website and were in the 
White Bear Press.  Next years event will be March 7, 2020.  
Continuing to work on anti-plastics campaign Mn Dot will make the signs for us highway grade 
for $20 each.  Will present sample of sign and cover letter to board next month. Discussion of 
also having trash receptacles near signs most of not all areas have them. 
Also on the website information on how people can become a certified invasive species spotter 
being trained by U of M. 

12. Treasurer’s Report – Motion (DeSmet/Second) approval of March 2019 Treasurer’s report and 
payment of check numbers 4555 – 4561 with 4559 being voided All Aye passed.   

13. Board Counsel 
Nothing new to report.   Brought St. Thomas 1 st year law student with to observe as part of a 
mentoring program Alan participates in. 

14. Consent Agenda – Motion (DeSmet/Second) Move to accept the consent agenda. All Aye 
Passed. 

15. Announcements – None 
16. Adjournment – Motion (DeSmet/Second) Move to adjourn. All aye Passed. 

Meeting adjourned 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
Kim Johnson: Kim Johnson                
Executive Administrative Secretary 
Date: April 16, 2019 
 
 
 
 
Mark Ganz Mark Ganz                       Date: April 16, 2019 
Board Vice Chair 
 
  
 
 



City of White Bear Lake Environmental Advisory Commission 
MINUTES 
Date: March 20, 2019 Time: 6:30pm Location: WBL City Hall 

COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT 
Sheryl Bolstad, Chris Greene, Bonnie Greenleaf, Rick Johnston, June 
Sinnett, Robert Winkler 

COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT Gary Schroeher 

STAFF PRESENT Connie Taillon, Environmental Specialist 

VISITORS None 

NOTETAKER Connie Taillon 

   
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order at 6:33 pm. 
 
2.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA   

The commission members reviewed the agenda and had no changes. Staff added Climate Smart Municipalities 
to item 7b Staff Updates. Commissioner Greenleaf moved, seconded by Commissioner Johnston, to approve 
the agenda as amended. Motion carried, vote 5/0. 
 
Commission member arrived at 6:35pm 
 

3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
a) February 20, 2019 regular meeting 
 The commission members reviewed the February 20, 2019 draft minutes and had no changes. 

Commissioner Sinnett moved, seconded by Commissioner Greene, to approve the minutes of the February 
20, 2019 meeting as presented. Motion carried, vote 6/0. 

 
4.  VISITORS & PRESENTATIONS 
 Nate Christensen from the City’s Engineering Department discussed the upcoming 2019 street reconstruction 

projects. The project locations include Garden Lane and streets to the east of Stewart Avenue, south of 7th 
Street (including 7th), and west of Lake Avenue. An infiltration trench is proposed on the south side of Garden 
Lane to provide stormwater treatment. Due to high groundwater, underground stormwater treatment will not 
be included as part of the downtown area reconstruction project. The City is spending some of its volume 
reduction credits through Rice Creek Watershed District to satisfy the water quality requirement in this area. 
These credits were banked from past stormwater projects. The Rice Creek Watershed District and City are 
partnering again to offer a raingarden cost share program for residents within the reconstruction area. 
Approximately thirteen residents have expressed interest in the program. Nate briefly discussed the proposed 
2020 reconstruction project locations, including three City parking lots in the Downtown Area, Cottage Park 
Road, a residential area surrounding Elm Street in the southwest corner of the City, and a residential area 
surrounding Glen Oaks Avenue in the southeast corner of the City.  

 
5.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a) Adopt a Drain program 
Staff updated the commission on the metro-wide Adopt a Drain Program. The Adopt a Drain website 
became live this week. Any resident can go on the website and adopt a drain. VLAWMO is interested in 
collaborating with the City to provide targeted educational materials about the program within the Goose 
Lake subwatershed.  



March 20, 2019 Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 3 
 

 
b) Downtown area recycling 
 Commission members discussed strategies for incorporating recycling in the downtown area. The recycling 

subcommittee will create a map showing the location of all recycling and trash containers in the downtown 
area and research options for new combined trash and recycling containers. The next step will be to 
determine locations for the new trash and recycling containers and if any of the existing trash containers 
can be removed. Staff will provide a base map of the downtown area.    
 

c) Pollinator plantings in parks 
 Commissioner Schroeher provided an email update summarizing his meeting with the Parks Commission 

on February 21, 2019. The Parks Commission seemed very receptive to planting more pollinator plants but 
had concerns about maintenance obligations, attracting ticks, and determining the types of plants to plant. 
They also discussed possibly planting pollinator plants instead of trees at the Arbor Day event in May. Staff 
will include pollinator plantings on the April Environmental Advisory Commission agenda to discuss 
possible next steps. 

  
d) 2019 Environmental Resources Expo 
 The commissioners discussed changes to the exhibitor list. Staff will update the contact information for 

Conservation Minnesota. Commissioner Bolstad will not be contacting the Honor Society this year because 
there was a good turnout of Boy Scouts last year to help with setup and takedown. Commissioner Winkler 
will contact Rainbow Tree Care to invite them to the event. Commissioner Bolstad will email the 
commission members sample invite language. Invites should be emailed out by the April meeting. Staff 
mentioned that Ramsey County has phone holders that can be given away at the event.   

 
6. NEW BUSINESS  

None 
 
Commission member left at 8:00pm 
 

7.  DISCUSSION 
a) Subcommittee updates 
 None 
 
b) Staff updates 

- Volunteer cleanup event 
Staff reported that there is a volunteer opportunity to clean storm drains and hang Adopt-a-Drain door 
hangers in the Goose Lake subwatershed. Staff will provide more information at the April meeting. 
 

- Environmental Commission Conference – April 13 
The statewide Environmental Commission Conference is scheduled for Saturday, April 13, 3019 from 
9am to 2pm at Hennepin United Methodist Church.  

 
- Climate Smart Municipalities 
 Staff updated the commission on the Climate Smart Municipalities exchange program with Germany. A 

German exchange student was selected to help the City this summer with energy related projects such as 
EV charging infrastructure, electrifying fleet vehicles, and education. The intern will start on April 7th. 

 
c) Commission member updates 

Commissioner Greene provided an update on the Water Gremlin TCE meeting. The main question he still 
has that was not addressed at the meeting is which equipment failed and how could it have been in failure 
mode without it being detected. He stated that there is a bill in the legislature to ban TCE.  



March 20, 2019 Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 3 
 

 
d) Do-outs 

Commission members and staff discussed items on the current do-out list and added the following: 

- Commissioner Bolstad will email example invitation language for expo participants.   

- Commissioner Bolstad will research options for trash and recycling containers in the downtown area. 

- Commissioners and staff will email an invite to respective Expo participant contacts. 

- Commissioner Johnston will create a location map of downtown area trash and recycling containers.  

- Staff will provide a map of the downtown area to Commissioner Johnston. 

- Staff will email an Adopt a Drain link to commission members. 

-  Staff will add contact information for the new Conservation MN East metro representative.  

-  Staff will order phone holders (Pop Sockets) from Ramsey County to give away at the Expo. 
  

e) April agenda 
Include pollinator plantings, volunteer cleanup event, Adopt a Drain program, Environmental Resource 
Expo, Conservation MN guest, and U of M speaker on the April agenda. Commissioner Winkler plans to 
attend the April meeting. Commissioner’s Bolstad and Johnston are not able to attend.  
 

8.  ADJOURNMENT 
The next meeting will be held at City Hall on April 17, 2019 at 6:30pm. Commissioner Sinnett moved, 
seconded by Commissioner Greenleaf, to adjourn the meeting at 8:18 pm. Motion carried, vote 5/0. 



10.B 
 

City of White Bear Lake 
City Manager’s Office 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Ellen Richter, City Manager 
 
From:  Kara Coustry, City Clerk 
 
Date:  April 18, 2019 
 
Subject: On-sale wine, 3.2 and Sunday liquor licenses at The Waters Senior Living 

Management, LLC 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY 
The Waters of White Bear Lake will be changing ownership effective May 1, 2019.  The facility 
is currently licensed for wine, 3.2, Sunday and Extension liquor licenses.  The new owners would 
like to retain these licenses. 
 
The City received an application from Lynn Carlson Schell, President on behalf of The Waters 
Senior Living Management, LLC dba The Waters of White Bear Lake for on-sale wine, 3.2, 
Sunday and extension liquor license on the premises located at 3820 Hoffman Road, White Bear 
Lake, MN.  The Police Department completed a financial and criminal background check related 
to the application and found nothing that precludes approval of the requested liquor licenses. The 
required liquor liability insurance certificate has been submitted and the full application is on file 
for review.  
 
RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION 
Staff recommends approval of the attached resolution for on-sale wine, 3.2, Sunday and 
extension liquor licenses as no concerns were identified through the application process, and all 
license requirements have been met.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO.   

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ON-SALE 3.2, WINE, EXTENSION AND SUNDAY 
LIQUOR LICENSES FOR THE WATERS SENIOR LIVING MANAGEMENT, LLC 

DBA THE WATERS OF WHITE BEAR LAKE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of White Bear Lake received an application from Lynn Carlson for 
On-Sale 3.2, Wine, Extension and Sunday liquor licenses for The Waters Senior Living 
Management, LLC dba The Waters of White Bear Lake (Application); and 

WHEREAS, The Applicant submitted the required insurance and satisfied the financial 
and criminal background investigation for which the Police Department found nothing adverse 
that would preclude approval of these licenses; and 

WHEREAS, the approval of any liquor licenses would be valid effective May 1, 2019 
through the end of the business cycle on March 31, 2020. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the White Bear Lake City Council 
approves the issuance of On-Sale 3.2, Wine, Extension and Sunday liquor licenses as follows:  
 

The Waters Senior Living Management, LLC 
The Waters of White Bear Lake 
White Bear Lake, MN  55110 

 
 
The foregoing resolution offered by Councilmember ___________and supported by 

Councilmember __________, was declared carried on the following vote: 
 
  Ayes:      
     Nays:   
    Passed:   
 
 
 
        _________________________  
        Jo Emerson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 



10.C 
 

City of White Bear Lake 
City Manager’s Office 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Ellen Hiniker, City Manager 
 
From:  Rick Juba, Assistant City Manager 
 
Date:  April 18, 2019 
 
Subject: Bellaire Center – Comcast Rental Agreement 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Comcast lease in the City’s Bellaire Center was last renewed June 1, 2018 – May 31, 2019.   
 
SUMMARY 
The terms of the lease are intended to coincide with the cable franchise renewal process.  
Consistent with staff’s recommendation to approve an extension of the franchise agreement, it is 
recommended that the lease with Comcast be extended through February 28, 2020.  The lease 
maintains the existing base rent of $10.17 per square foot, with all operating costs paid by the 
leaseholder. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the City Council approve a lease extension with Comcast under current terms 
through February 28, 2020.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 

 
RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING RENTAL RATES FOR COMCAST CABLE 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City has rented space at 2446 County Road F to Comcast Cable; and  

 WHEREAS, Comcast Cable and the City have determined it is mutually beneficial to extend the 
lease. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, be it resolved, that the City Council of the City of 
White Bear Lake, that a lease between Comcast Cable and the City of White Bear Lake shall be extended 
with the following changes made to the present lease: 

Term:   June 1, 2019 – February 28, 2020 
 
Effective Date: June 1, 2019 
 
Base Rent:  $10.17 per square foot. 
    
Operating Rent Operating rent established at $3.45 per square foot.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City recognizes that a upon completion of a franchise 
agreement between Comcast Cable and Ramsey Washington Suburban Cable Commission, on behalf of 
the City of White Bear Lake, that it is Comcast Cable’s desire to enter into a long-term lease for the 
facility; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Manager are authorized and hereby 

directed to execute said lease on behalf of the City. 

 The foregoing resolution, offered by Councilmember __________ and supported by 
Councilmember            ____, was declared carried on the following vote: 

 
   Ayes:  
   Nays:  
   Passed:  
              
         Mayor Jo Emerson   
   

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 



10.D 
 

City of White Bear Lake 
City Manager’s Office 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To:  Ellen Hiniker, City Manager 
 
From:  Kara Coustry, City Clerk 
 
Date:  April 11, 2019 
 
Subject: Massage Therapist Establishment License – Recommendation for denial 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
On January 1, 2016, City Ordinance 1127 went into effect, which requires all persons performing 
massage therapy and related businesses to be licensed. The licensee is required to submit 
documentation demonstrating they have received the appropriate training and insurance. A 
criminal history check and financial review are also conducted. 
 
SUMMARY 
The City received a complete massage therapist establishment application from Craig Zorn on 
February 28, 2019.  Mr. Zorn seeks a license to operate a massage establishment at the location of 
2033 County Road EE, called Meridian Care Massage. 
 
Mr. Zorn listed two massage therapist practitioners on the application that he intended to employ 
at the location:  Lya Liurong and Yuanfen Liu. To date, the City only received an application from 
Yuanfen Liu, Mr. Zorn’s wife, whose schooling was determined not to be accredited. 
Consequently, the City has not been able to complete the background check investigation on Ms. 
Liu for a license determination. A letter was mailed to Yuanfen Liu on March 4, 2019, that notified 
the applicant of the City’s inability to continue to process her massage therapist application due to 
her non-accredited schooling. 
 
The background investigation on Craig Zorn revealed several items of concern related to the 
applicant, outlined below. 
 
Residence listed on application is a business:  Mr. Zorn listed his home address of 2723 E. Blvd. 
Plaza, Wichita, KS 67211, which is actually an address to one of his businesses called Beijing 
Massage. It was determined through the credit history report, that Mr. Zorn has used an apartment 
address in Stillwater, MN since 2012.  Mr. Zorn has a current Kansas Driver’s License, as well as 
an expired license out of Wisconsin using a Menomonie, WI address in 2012-2017. 
 
Businesses listed, one not confirmed as named:  Mr. Zorn listed on his application that he has a 
massage establishment license for Daily Massage at 5311 E. Central Ave., Wichita, KS. The 
business licensing agent for the City of Wichita confirmed by letter they have no record of a 



10.D 
 

Massage Therapist Business by the name of Daily Massage operating in the City of Wichita, 
however, at the same address, the City of Wichita confirmed Mr. Zorn’s business is licensed as 
Beijing Massage through 10/3/19. 
 
Wichita Police Report:  At Beijing Massage, 2723 E Boulevard Plaza, KS, it was discovered a 
police report was filed on September 4, 2018. Police responded to a report of a young girl in the 
business. They made contact with Mr. Zorn who showed them around his business. Police 
encountered a man putting on his trousers who claimed to have just gotten a massage.  When Police 
asked Mr. Zorn where the massage therapist was who just provided the massage, Mr. Zorn stated 
she was someone he picked up from another place but he did not know where she was and she 
must have left.  The police ultimately located a bare-footed woman hiding behind the business 
who confirmed she was providing massage at Mr. Zorn’s business – Beijing Massage.  The woman 
was found not to have a valid license to practice massage and was consequently arrested and 
charged for operating without a license. Mr. Zorn was not charged with allowing an unlicensed 
therapist to operate in his business. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Based on these background check findings, especially deception related to Mr. Zorn’s massage 
business establishment and practices at Beijing Massage, staff does recommend a massage 
business license in the City of White Bear Lake. 
 
The applicant indicated they would attend the Council meeting for this license determination. If 
the applicant appeard and wishes to speak, staff would ask that this item be removed from consent 
and added to New Business for consideration. Legal counsel is prepared to speak to this matter if 
needed. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution of Denial 
Police Chief Memo and Report 
City of Wichita Letter dated 2/22/19 
Wichita Police Report 
Email from Craig Zorn 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 
 

RESOLUTION DENYING A 
MASSAGE THERAPIST BUSINESS LICENSE 

 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 1127 of the Municipal Code of the City of White Bear Lake (“City 
Code”) requires anyone desiring to establish a massage therapist business to obtain a massage 
therapist business license (“Business License”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Craig Arthur Zorn (“Applicant”) applied for a Business License to operate 
a massage establishment at 2033 Co. Rd. E. within the City of White Bear Lake (“City”) in the 
name of Meridian Care Massage (“Proposed Business”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Applicant identified Yuanfen Liu, his wife, and Lyu Liurong as the 
massage therapists he intends to employ at the Proposed Business, but Lyu Liurong did not 
submit a massage therapist license application to the City and the application submitted by 
Yuanfen Liu could not be processed as it failed to contain a certification or proof of graduation 
from an accredited educational intuition as required under City Code, Section 1127.050, 
subdivision 3; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council considered the applications at its April 23, 2019 meeting 
and hereby finds and determines as follows: 
 

a. The amendments to City Code, Chapter 1127 adopted by the City Council went into 
effect on April 5, 2019 and consideration of this application was made pursuant to 
that amended Chapter; 
 

b. The Applicant indicated he has owned three massage businesses in the last five years, 
two in Wichita, Kansas and one is Lake Elmo, Minnesota.  Staff within the City of 
Wichita confirmed that one of the establishments the Applicant identified, Daily 
Massage, has not been licensed by the city.  Instead, its records show the Applicant 
has licenses for two establishments called Beijing Massage in the City of Wichita.  
The Applicant indicated he did not renew his license for Nirvana Massage & Spa, his 
massage business in Lake Elmo; 
 

c. The Applicant lists the address of one of the massage establishments in Wichita as his 
home address, but the building is clearly in a commercial area and is not a residential 
structure.  The Applicant did not list a residence in Minnesota; 

 
d. The Applicant submitted the required proof of insurance; 
 
e. The Applicant indicated he was “improperly and illegally” told he could not open one 

of his establishments because of charges brought against an employee (Yuanfen Liu).  
He did not indicate to which business he was referring, but said he lost his business as 
a result. The Applicant indicated that his employee was ultimately found not guilty by 
a jury and stated he does not allow illegal behavior on his property; 

 



2 
 

f. The City discovered a Wichita City Police Department report (which is incorporated 
herein by reference) concerning an incident that occurred on September 4, 2018 
related to one of the Beijing Massage establishments.  The report indicates that when 
the officers responded to a welfare check concerning a young girl at the business, a 
passerby reported seeing a woman leave the back of the establishment and hide 
behind a dumpster in the alley.  The person reported that she then saw the woman run 
across the street and hide behind another business.  When the police communicated 
with the woman that had been hiding she indicated that she was from Beijing 
Massage.  The officers were able to confirm that she had been giving a customer a 
massage at the establishment when the police arrived and she admitted to not having a 
massage therapist license.  The woman was cited for providing massages without a 
license.  The business was not cited, but the fact an unlicensed person was allowed to 
conduct massages at the establishment is contrary to the statement the Applicant 
made in the application about not allowing “illegal behavior” to occur at his 
establishments; 
 

g. The staff memo regarding the license requests submitted to the City Council are 
incorporated in and made part of this Resolution by reference (collectively, the “Staff 
Reports”); 
 

h. City Code, Section 1127.110, subdivision 1 indicates that an applicant with a history 
of violations of law or ordinance that apply to public health, safety, and morals 
constitutes sufficient grounds to deny an application; 

 
i. The Applicant asserts that because his business was not issued a citation related to the 

unlicensed person providing massages at his establishment means the incident reflects 
no wrongdoing on his part.  He referred to the person that called to express concern 
regarding a young girl observed at the business as a religious zealot that made a false 
complaint.  He also referred to the person that admitted to providing massage without 
a license, and who was charged for that violation, as a prospective employee that was 
interviewing for a job; 

 
j. The City Council finds the Applicant’s explanation and excuses related to the incident 

at the Wichita establishment to not be credible.  The Applicant was present when the 
unlicensed person was providing massage services at his establishment and the fact 
the officers did not issue the business a citation for the violation does not excuse or 
absolve the Applicant from the incident.  Regardless of the claimed motivation of the 
person who called in a concern regarding the establishment, the resulting response 
revealed a violation.  The unlicensed person was clearly aware she was committing a 
violation as she attempted to run and hide when the police arrived.  Additionally, 
claiming the unlicensed person was a prospective employee does not excuse the 
violation.  Furthermore, the police report indicates the Applicant admitted the person 
comes over periodically from another massage establishment to provide extra help; 

 
k. The application form for a Business License requires the applicant to disclose 

whether the person has “ever operated a massage therapy establishment, been 
licensed as a massage therapist, or practiced massage professionally”; 



3 
 

 
l. The application form for a Business License also contains a statement signed by the 

person making the application certifying that all of the information provided on the 
form is “accurate and complete”; 

 
m. City Code, Section 1127.110, subdivision 6 indicates that a license may be denied if 

an applicant provides “false information in its application materials” or “fails to 
disclose information required on the application form”; 

 
n. The Applicant misidentified the name of one of his massage establishments in the 

City of Wichita.  The City requires an applicant to list the massage establishments for 
which they were licensed in the previous five years to facilitate the background check 
the City conducts to determine if the applicant is eligible for a license in the City of 
White Bear Lake.  Providing false or incomplete information on an application form 
frustrates that purpose and is, alone, a sufficient basis on which to deny an 
application; 

 
o. The Applicant identifying a Wichita business address as his home address constitutes 

providing false information in violation of the certification in the application and City 
Code, Section 1127.110, subdivision 6; 

 
p. Failing to identify a residence in Minnesota raises concerns regarding the Applicant’s 

ability to manage the Proposed Business to ensure it is conducted in accordance with 
state and local laws; 

 
q. Massage therapy is a legitimate business and the City has licensed several such 

businesses within the City.  However, the nature of the business, the potential for 
such businesses to be used as a front for illegal activities, and the difficulties related 
to identifying and enforcing violations occurring at massage therapy establishments 
compels the City Council to carefully scrutinize applications for massage therapist 
business licenses and massage therapist licenses; 
 

r. The City has previously been required to act to close massage therapist businesses not 
operating in accordance with law and is aware of the costs associated with having to 
take such enforcement actions; 

 
s. The City Council is charged with protecting public health, safety, and welfare, 

including from the activities of businesses licensed by the City; 
 
t. Cities necessarily have broad authority to consider the circumstances surrounding a 

license application as part of deciding whether to approve a license; 
 
u. Pursuant to City Code, Section 1127.050, subdivision 8, the City Manager is to report 

to the City Council on the eligibility of the Applicant for a Business License.  The 
City Manager, in the Staff Reports, recommended that the Applicant’s application be 
denied; 

 



4 
 

v. The City sent the Applicant a letter dated April 2, 2019 informing him that staff is 
recommending the City Council deny the requested Business License; 

 
w. The history of a criminal violation issued to an unlicensed person providing massage 

services at the Application’s massage business in Wichita, which reflects on how the 
Applicant operated his business, misidentifying the name of a massage business in 
Wichita, and listing the address of one of the massage businesses in Wichita as the 
Applicant’s home address constitute a violation of the certification made as part of 
the application and is a violation of City Code, Section 1127.110, subdivisions 1 and 
6.  These violations are sufficient grounds on which to deny the application and the 
City Council determines that denying the application is appropriate in order to the 
protect public health, safety, and welfare; and 

 
x. Under City Code, Section 1127.050, subdivision 8, a City Council decision to deny 

an application constitutes a final decision that is not subject to appeal within the City. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of White Bear Lake, based on the 
application materials, the Staff Reports, the findings and determinations contained herein, and 
the record of this matter, hereby resolves as follows: 
 

1. The application submitted by Craig Arthur Zorn for a massage therapy business 
license for the Proposed Business is hereby denied. 
 

2. Pursuant to City Code, Section 1127.115, subdivision 5, the Applicant is not eligible 
to reapply for a Business License for one year from the date of this Resolution. 

 
3. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to provide the Applicant a copy of 

this Resolution to serve as notice of the denial. 
 
 
 

The foregoing resolution offered by Councilmember __________ and supported by 
Councilmember __________ carried on April 23, 2019 on the following vote: 
 
 Ayes: 
 Nays: 
 Passed: 

             
       ________________________________ 

             Jo Emerson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Kara Coustry, City Clerk 



City of White Bear Lake 
Police Department 

M E M O R A N D U M

To: Ellen Hiniker, City Manager 

From: Julie Swanson, Chief of Police 

Date: April 12, 2019 

Subject: Meridan Care Massage – 2033 County Road E 

On March 4, 2019 police department staff conducted a background investigation on applicant, 
Craig Arthur Zorn, related to his business application for a massage establishment license.  The 
business Mr. Zorn is seeking to license is Meridan Care Massage located at 2033 County Road E, 
White Bear Lake. The applicant provided a lease agreement with Sunrise Center. LLC for the 
space.    

The applicant provided a home address in Wichita, Kansas.  However, a check of the address 
shows that it is actually the address for Beijing Massage, which the applicant owns. The applicant 
never provided a home address.  In his application, the applicant also lists three massage businesses 
that he claims to own.  They include Beijing Massage and Daily Massage located in Wichita, 
Kansas and Nirvana Massage in Lake Elmo, MN.  Staff communicated with the Business 
Licensing Manager for the City of Wichita who confirmed that the applicant is the owner for both 
establishments; however, they are both licensed as Beijing Massage.  The applicant does not have 
a business called Daily Massage. 

The applicant does not have a criminal history in Minnesota, and staff is unable to run a national 
criminal history check under state guidelines.  Staff obtained a police report from the Wichita 
Police Department involving the applicant and one of his establishments.  A complainant reported 
seeing a young female in the window, and later heard screaming from inside the business.  Upon 
police arrival, the applicant denied having any young women in the establishment, and stated the 
only other person at the business was a male who was getting dressed after his massage. While 
there, a bystander reported to police that they observed a young woman flee the business just prior 
to police arrival, and that she was hiding behind a dumpster in the back of the business.  Officers 
located the female walking away from the business, with no shoes on and no personal belongings. 
Officers learned she was working in the business as a therapist and she did not have the required 
license.   

A check of the applicant’s credit history also shows several negative listings related to accounts in 
collection.  Due to the inconsistencies with the applicant’s home address and business listings, the 
police contact in Wichita, KS and the concerns with his credit obligations, staff recommends denial 
of the applicants request for a massage business license in the City of White Bear Lake. 



























From: Craig Zorn
To: Kara Coustry
Subject: License denial
Date: Thursday, April 11, 2019 10:05:48 AM

Dear Ms Coustry:
I received your denial for a massage enterprise license today. Stated in the denial said it was
based on a charge for an employee working without a license. I was never charged with that.
Whatever reads in that incident should not have any reflection of wrongdoing on my part. I
will investigate  further and you can be assured of legal action on that. What occurred there
was that a "prospective' employee was interviewing for a job when a religious zealot called a
false complaint that had no basis in fact whatsoever. Besides, why call a complaint on a
business only engaged in medical massage. Are you going to deny a dentist a license when
they do acupressure before giving Novocain? I strongly object to this decision and will be
contacting my lawyer regarding this. This kind of thing is typical of government nowadays.
You aren't railroading a racial minority that isn't afraid to fight. Your decision took months.
You again destroyed opportunity for yet another law abiding citizen, a citizen who was born in
the Twin Cities area. I am not proud of that fact anymore.

Craig Zorn

mailto:sputumus@gmail.com
mailto:kcoustry@whitebearlake.org


 

MAY 4TH, 2019 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 
ANNUAL BANQUET 
Please Join Us! 
You and a guest are invited to join us at the annual banquet. It will 
be a fun filled night of recognition and socialization. You must 
RSVP Connie Anderson by April 26th, 2019 if you plan on attending. 
You can contact her by phone at 651-429-8568 or via email at 
canderson@whitebearlake.org.  

We hope to see you there! 

 

 

Social Hour - 5 PM 
____ 

Dinner – 6 PM 
____ 

Slide Show 
____ 

Awards & 
Recognition 

____ 

DJ & Dancing! 

LOCATION 
Manitou Grill & Event Center 

2171 4th St 
White Bear Lake, MN 55110 

 

 

 

  

mailto:canderson@whitebearlake.org

	1 Agenda, April 23, 2019
	TUESDAY, APRIL 23, 2019

	2 040919 Council Minutes
	MINUTES
	2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
	4. VISITORS AND PRESENTATIONS
	Nothing scheduled
	5. PUBLIC HEARINGS
	6. LAND USE
	7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	8. ORDINANCES
	9. NEW BUSINESS
	10. CONSENT
	11.  DISCUSSION

	5A Memo SWPPP 041619
	6A Memo Comp Plan
	6A Resolution Comp Plan Acceptance and Distribution 042319_
	6AA PC Minutes Excerpt 022519
	6AA PC Minutes Excerpt 032519
	9A Memo Cable Franchise Extension
	9A Resolution Comcast Franchise Renewal Extension
	9A Wash SCC signed by Comcast
	9B Memo_Award Contract 19-02
	9B Resolution AWDBID 19-02
	9C Memo_Award Bid 19-03
	9C Resolution No_AWDBID 19-03
	10A WBLCD Minutes Feb 2019
	10A WBLCD Minutes March 2019
	10AA 032019 EAC Minutes-Approved
	10B Memo The Waters of WBL
	10B Resolution Liquor Licenses to The Waters of WBL
	10C Memo Comcast Rent
	10C Resolution Comcast Rent
	RESOLUTION NO.
	ATTEST:

	10D Massage Memo Admin Zorn
	10D Resolution Zorn DOCSOPEN-#561586-v4-Resolution_Denying_Zorn_Massage_Business_License
	ATTEST:

	10D Supporting PD Massage Memo PD Zorn
	10D Supporting Zorn Denial
	10D Zorn Email License denial
	FYI 2019 Annual Banquet Flyer
	Please Join Us!
	Social Hour - 5 PM
	Dinner – 6 PM
	Slide Show
	Awards & Recognition
	DJ & Dancing!
	LOCATION




